
 

AGENDA 
YORK CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, October 6, 2020 
6:00 pm  

1.   Welcome and Call to Order                      Mayor Mike Fuesser 
 
  2.  Prayer              Mayor Pro Tem Ed Brown  
 
  3.  Pledge of Allegiance                                             Mayor Mike Fuesser 
 
  4.  Presentation                       

♦ New Employee Recognition            City Manager Seth Duncan 
♦ A.C.T. Community Organization   A.C.T. Representative 
♦ Christmas Parade   York Entertainment Society 

 
  5.  Public Hearings 
 

♦ Second Reading, Ordinance 20-635, Conditionally Allow Guest Houses in R15 District 
 
 6. Comments from the Public on Agenda Items 
 
  7.  City Manager’s Report    City Manager Seth Duncan 

♦ City Park Update 
    
  8.  Council Minutes: Regular, September 1, 2020, and Work Session, September 14, 2020  
 
  9.  Monthly Financial Report   Finance Director Barbara Denny 
 
  10  Old Business: 

♦    Second Reading, Ordinance 20-635, Conditionally Allow Guest Houses in R15 District 
♦ First Reading, Ordinance 20-636, Annexation/PUD Rezoning (Fergus Crossroads) 

 
   11. New Business: 

♦ First Reading, Ordinance 20-637, 2020 MASC Debt Setoff Program 
♦ First Reading, Ordinance 20-638, Water & Sewer Rates  
♦ Business License Penalty Refund Request  
♦ Approvals for Bids and Awards 

• Fishing Creek WWTP Existing Roof System to ATD Restoration for $23,350 
♦ Special Events  

• Movie Under the Stars  
• Halloween 
• WUCO Application 
• Christmas Parade Application 
 

 12.  Mayor’s Report  
♦ Board and Commission Openings 
♦ Election Day November 3rd 

 
13.       Adjourn 

 
 

YORK, SOUTH CAROLINA 29745 
(803) 684-1705 FAX 

www.yorksc.gov 

CITY OF YORK 

10 NORTH ROOSEVELT 
      

P.O.  BOX 500 

MICHAEL D. FUESSER 

 (803) 684-2341 

EDWARD L. BROWN 

STEPHANIE S. JARRETT 
Councilmember 

Mayor 

Councilmember 

Councilmember 
S. DENISE LOWRY 

JAMES W. BRADFORD, Jr. 

Councilmember 

STEVE A. LOVE 

MARION L. RAMSEY 

Mayor Pro Tem 

Councilmember 



A.C.T. Mission and Values: Adopted 6/18/2020

A.C.T.’s Mission:
The mission of A.C.T. is to promote community understanding and racial equality for all
citizens of Western York County.  Working in partnership with local government, area
churches, and other agencies, we hope to effect change by developing honest
communication, building bridges of trust, and holding all parties accountable for
decisions that affect our community.

A.C.T.’s Core Values:

Accountability: We believe that those who are in position to create policies and laws, 
those who are called to protect and serve, and citizens of our community should be 
held accountable for their actions. We hold ourselves and others accountable to racial 
reform and commit ourselves to bringing the plight of underrepresented and 
underserved individuals into focus in order to eradicate inequality. 

Communication: We believe that there must be honest, genuine, tough conversations 
with one another at all levels about race and injustice so that all voices are heard and 
represented in the decision making process to ensure that how we live and govern 
ourselves is best for everyone.  

Trust: We believe that marginalized citizens must have a voice they can trust that will 
explore the issues which divide our community while promoting unity and improving the 
quality of life for all citizens. We recognize the need for a foundation of trust to be built 
as we commit ourselves to working diligently to bring to the forefront issues of 
inequality. 



A.C.T. Goals and Objectives Survey Data: Review 

 

Specific goal setting data by area: 
 

1. Educational Initiatives: 
 

Equity in Resources  Educator Education  Educator Recruitment 

-partner with programs at the 

schools to bring in diverse speakers 

or mentors for students. 

-partner with area schools to 

identify educational needs. 

- identify the specific educational 

needs in our community and how 

we might address those. 

- access to the same tools and 

resources 

- equity in education;  

 -help educators better teach all 

angles of our state and national 

history 

-Education around implicit bias, 
white privilege and the 
dehumanization of black and brown 
persons in our community 
 
- "flatten the ground" for educational 
success in our school district 
 
 -help educators better teach all 

angles of our state and national 

history 

- Support minority recruitment 

efforts in the school system and 

work to promote racial equity in 

educational practices 

 



 

2. Criminal Justice Reform 
 

Public Understanding Communication between Agencies Accountability Resource 

- a better understanding of 

our current legal system and 

how it may be impacting 

minority communities in an 

unjust way 

-ongoing conversation with the York 
PD, the County Sheriff, and the 
Circuit solicitor on law enforcement 
best practices 

-we need to be sure that laws are 
equally applied regardless of color 
or culture. 
 
- Demilitarization of police 
 
- removing police immunity if a 
crime is committed by an officer 
 
- banning certain tactics like choke 
holds and using the knee to pin a 
person down 
 
- deliberate efforts to recruit more 
African American, Hispanic 
 
- it would be helpful to have a 
non-governmental group that can 
have a voice in this issue, and 
advocate for "equal justice," and 
accountability for elected positions 
 
-Change in policies around policing, 
arrests, sentencing and bias 
towards black and brown 
individuals 
 

 
 

3. Government Involvement: 
 

Leadership Buy-in Consistent Communication Becoming Actively Anti-Racist 

-In order to make changes we must 
have change from the top down. We 
need government officials to 
understand the issues that face 
their citizens 
 
-Hold politicians accountable for 
justice and what's fair and right for 
all 

-I would like for us to build a bridge 
of communication and 
understanding with the City and 
County government which will lead 
to government action on issues we 
advocate.  

-Governmental stance against 
racism of any form 

 
 
 
 
 



4. Other Ideas: 
 

Public Works Healthcare Integration of Community Events 

- I know that what we see makes an 

impact on us. I would like for us to 

display our diversity by creating 

visible murals and to promote 

diversity through our agencies like 

the YCL. 

- building membership and getting 

more people on board 

 

-I think it is important for us to look 
at it, and I would like to be part of 
what our group is able to do in this 
area, especially helping women and 
children find affordable housing and 
healthcare. 
 

-As a Christian in a mono-cultural 
church, I have deeply benefited from 
the opportunities I've had to work 
with and worship with fellow 
believers in the African-American 
churches in our area. Yet, it is not 
lost on me that these times are the 
exception to the rule. Perhaps along 
with the Ministerial Association, we 
could provide other community 
events that might bring together 
different parts of our community. 
 

 
 
Next Steps: 

1. Members need to pick a subcommittee 
2. Each subcommittee needs to create at least one S.M.A.R.T. goal for their initiative area 
3. Bring goals to the next full committee meeting 

 

 



 

2020 Christmas Activities Overview 

York’s Great Light Fight - 11/25/20 

This will be the 2nd consecutive year for this Holiday Charity Event.  This year we are requesting that City Hall join in on the festivities 
to expand this program drive additional donations for 2020 Charity of Choice.  In 2019 we selected PATH as our Charity and this year 
(2020) we have chosen Tender Hearts Ministries as the Charity to receive the donations and/or proceeds.  Last year we collected just 
over 3,000 canned and non-perishable food items with the help of the City of York, York FD, and York PD.   

The unveiling of the Light Fight will occur on Wednesday 11/25/20 and voting will occur by making donations in the lobby of choice.  
Voting will end on 12/3/20 at 11:00PM.  Votes (Donations) will be counted on the morning of 12/4/20 and donation delivered to 
Tender Hearts Ministries.  Winning Building will be announced during the Tree Lighting Ceremony on 12/4/20 after the 81st Annual 
Christmas Parade. 

Hometown Christmas Activities: 

• Abbreviated Holiday Parade on 12/4/20 starting at 6:30 PM 
o Color Guard 
o Police Chief 
o Mayor 
o Fire Trucks 
o COVID Grinch 
o Mounted Patrol from YSO 
o Mr. and Mrs. Claus on Santa Truck 

• Tree Lighting immediately following the Parade at The City Marketplace  
o Caroling through Streets 
o Live Music Performers in Downtown 
o Shopping Events by Downtown Merchants 

• Saturday 12/5/20 Shopping Events 
o Live Music Performers in Downtown 
o Shopping Events by Merchants 
o Carolers through the Streets 
o Extended Shopping Hours into the Evening 

• Event Safety Protocols 
o We will be Live Streaming the Parade and Tree-Lighting via Facebook for Citizens to watch at home. 
o Parade will only have local participation and focus on local marketing. 
o No Outside food vendors other than Downtown Restaurants and eateries. 
o Tree-Lighting ceremony will be condensed. 
o No Indoor Santa Pictures this year. 
o If we receive a waiver or if large group event restrictions end, we can implement a larger parade event focusing on 

Local Participation.   

 

 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 

   David Breakfield, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Ord. 20-635, Conditionally allow Guest Houses in R15 District 

DATE:  September 29, 2020 

 
ISSUE 
Council is being asked to consider Second Reading of Ordinance 20-635 to conditionally allow guest 
houses in the R15 district in parcels with at least 20 acres.  
 
DISCUSSION 
We have received a zoning amendment application and supporting information to conditionally allow a 
single guest house where a property has at least 20 acres and a single primary residence in the R15 – 
Restricted Residential zoning district.  
 
A guest house is defined as a living quarters situated within a detached or semidetached accessory 
building located on the same premises with the principal building. Such quarters shall: (1) be used only 
by a bona fide nonpaying guest or relatives of the occupants of the premises; and (2) not be rented or 
otherwise occupied as a separate dwelling. Cooking facilities are permitted. 
 
The Comprehensive Plan indicates that innovative land use practices that provide diversity of housing 
types should be encouraged. The submitted proposal seems to fit this objective by providing an additional 
housing option where appropriately-sized lots are available.  
 
At its August 24th meeting, the Planning Commission reviewed and recommended approval of the 
application. City Council approved First Reading of this Ordinance at its September 1st meeting.  
 
The proposed ordinance is found to only impact a few parcels within the city limits, but will allow the 
applicant to construct a guest house on their parcel of 20+ acres in the City.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission and Staff recommend that Council approve second reading of an 
ordinance amending the zoning ordinance to conditionally allow a single guest house where a 
property has at least 20 acres and a single primary residence in the R15 – Restricted Residential 
zoning district. 



Definition of Guesthouse from City of York Zoning Ordinance 

Guesthouse. Living quarters situated within a detached or semidetached accessory building 
located on the same premises with the principal building. Such quarters shall: (1) be used only 
by a bona fide nonpaying guest or relatives of the occupants of the premises; and (2) not be 
rented or otherwise occupied as a separate dwelling. Cooking facilities are permitted.









STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) CITY OF YORK 

COUNTY OF YORK ) 
 
 

        ORDINANCE 20-635 
 

AMENDING APPENDIX A, ZONING ORDINANCE TO CONDITIONALLY 
ALLOW A GUEST HOUSE IN THE R15 – RESTRICTED RESIDENTIAL 
ZONING DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, the York City Council and Planning Commission find that the R15 – 

Restricted Residential zoning district is intended to be developed and 
reserved for low-density residential purposes; 

 
WHEREAS, the York City Council and Planning Commission find that the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan indicates that innovative land use practices should 
be employed to provide diversified housing opportunities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the York City Council and Planning Commission find that a guest house 

is an acceptable land use in the R15 district based on appropriate 
conditions being met. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED in Council assembled on the dates hereafter 
set forth that York City Council does herewith amend Appendix A, City of York Zoning 
Ordinance, Section XIII, R15 – Restricted Residential Zoning District, Conditional Uses 
as follows: 
 

1. A single guest house where a property has at least 20 acres and a single primary 
residence. 

 
DONE IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED on the dates hereafter set forth. 

 
 
 

Michael D. Fuesser, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST:    
Municipal Clerk 

First Reading:    
 

Public Hearing:    
 

Second Reading:    



 
MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Manager’s Report 

DATE: October 6, 2020 
 
 
City Park Update 
The redevelopment of City Park is nearing completion. Since the last update Carolina Recreation 
& Design has completed the two picnic shelters, City crews have completed the installation of 
water and sewer lines, Duke Energy has installed park lighting, and Faulkner Development has 
nearly completed work on the splash pad, parking lot, bike path, and park interior. Remaining 
items to be completed include the installation of the exterior fence, seeding, and landscaping. 
Though the original completion timeline forecasted the park to be completed by September 30th, 
we were granted an extension to December 31st.   

As mentioned earlier this summer, we do anticipate a cost overrun on the project. This was 
largely due to the volume of unsuitable soil, remnants of the old pool found at the site, and 
additional grading and erosion control measures for swale from pond outlet along Raille St. To 
date, five change orders have been issued to Faulkner Development including:  

• an additional 4,107 cubic yards of unsuitable soil export and import of suitable soils 
• demolition of pool walls per geotech recommendation 
• demolition of pool bottom per geotechnical recommendation 
• grading and erosion control measure for swale from pond outlet along Raille St. to road 

crossing outfall, and 
• splash pad layout plan set 

 
These change orders have increased the overall cost of the project by $119,775, with the bulk of 
the cost increase (about $115k) due to the significant volume of unsuitable soil present at the site 
and pool demolition. These cost overruns will be paid for by fund balance.  
 
Though the project is not complete, the City has submitted all documentation necessary for 
reimbursement of $65,000 in PARD funds (total grant awarded) and $191,056.50 of the 
$355,000 in LWCF funding. Once the project is complete, the City will request the balance of 
LWCF grand funding.  
 



City Council Meeting September 2020 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

Date and time: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 06:00 PM 
 
Members Present :      
Mayor Mike Fuesser    Councilmember Steve Love 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Brown     Councilmember Denise Lowry 
Councilmember Jim Bradford   Councilmember Marion Ramsey  
 Councilmember Stephanie Jarrett    
   
      
Participants: 
City Manager Seth Duncan   Ronnie Taylor     
Finance Director Barbara Denny   Mia Levetan 
Events Coordinator/PIO Karen Fritz  Paulajo Gross 
Planning Director David Breakfield  Gary Gross 
Charles Brewer     Richard Dover 
Beth Baker      Elizabeth Dover 
Dale Baker      Jeanette Reeves 
Tom Dickerson     James Reeves 
JJ Mattingly      Tom Lovelace 
Gary Good      Bonnie Gilfillan 
Terri Good      Randy Coulter 
Gary Shamp      Pam Coulter 
Debbie Shamp     Bou baker 
Matt Hickey      Sherry Whitesides 
        Mike Whitesides 

 
1. Welcome and Call To Order                                        Mayor Mike Fuesser 

 
2. Prayer        Mayor Pro Tem Ed Brown 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance      Mayor Mike Fuesser 

 
4. Presentation  

 
Mayor Fuesser presented Maxabilites with a Proclamation for Direct Support 
Professionals Appreciation Week.  

 
5. Public Hearings 

 
5.1 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-629, Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

  
         There was no public comment. 
 

5.2 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-630, Garbage Fees 
 

      There was no public comment. 
 



City Council Meeting September 2020 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

5.3 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-631, Water and Sewer Rates 
    

 There was no public comment. 
 

5.4 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-632, Administrative Fee Debt Set-off Program  
 
 There was no public comment. 

 
6. Comments from the Public on Agenda Items 

 
Charles Brewer, Mia Levetan, Mark Shirley, JJ Mattingly, Mike Dover, Tom Dickerson, 
Dale Baker, Kim Bailey, Jeff Ligon, Melanie Campbell, Bou Baker, Terri Good, and Gary 
Good all spoke in opposition to the Fergus Crossroads project.  The following citizens e-
mailed comments in opposition of the Fergus Crossroads project: JJ and Crystalen 
Mattingly, Charles Brewer, Kristen Betlow, Lowell Bomar, and Gene, Carroll,& Catherine 
Catoe,  
 

 Dan D’Agostino spoke in favor of allowing a guest house in the R15 District. 
  
Gary Gross spoke against removal of the property from historic district. 
 

7. City Manager’s Report 
 

7.1 City Facilities Reopening 
    

 A final plan is being drafted by staff on how to reopen city hall. The recreation 
center remains closed, except for registration. There is not a date set to open 
the rec center for free play. The police and fire departments will remain closed 
for the foreseeable future.  

 
7.2 Movie In The Park  
 

 The city will be hosting a free family friendly movie in October at the York 
Recreation Complex. Concessions and face masks will be available for 
attendees. Attendees are also welcome to bring their own concessions.  

 
  
8.   Council Minutes: Regular, August 4, 2020, and Work Session, August 17,2020 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Brown made a motion to approve both sets of minutes which was 
seconded by Councilmember Ramsey. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 

9. Monthly Financial Report    Finance Director Barbara Denny 
  

Finance Director Denny reported that the current report was for the time period ending 
July 31, 2020. Expenses are staying within budget and the city is doing well with 
revenue.  In September, we will receive three vehicles from the lease.   
 



City Council Meeting September 2020 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

10. Old Business 
 

10.1 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-629, Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 
 
 Councilmember Bradford made a motion to approve second reading of 

Ordinance 20-629 which was seconded by Councilmember Jarrett. The motion 
passed with unanimous approval. 

  
10.2 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-630, Garbage Fees 

 
 Councilmember Ramsey made a motion to approve second reading of Ordinance 

20-630 which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion passed with 
unanimous approval. 

 
 

10.3 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-631, Water and Sewer Rates 
 
 Councilmember Love made a motion to approve second reading of Ordinance 

20-631 which was seconded by Councilmember Ramsey. The motion passed 
with unanimous approval. 

 
10.4 Second Reading, Ordinance 20-632, Administrative Fee Debt Set-off Program  

 
 Councilmember Ramsey made a motion to approve second reading of Ordinance 

20-632 which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion passed with 
unanimous approval. 

 
10.5 Application for Removal of Property From Historic District 

 
 Councilmember Bradford made a motion to postpone taking action until the 

planning commission can review the entire plan usage for the historic properties 
and make a recommendation which was seconded by Councilmember Lowry. 

 Councilmember Ramsey recused himself. Mayor Pro Tem Brown and 
Councilmembers Lowry, Bradford, and Love voted in support and Mayor Fuesser 
and Councilmember Jarrett voted in opposition. The motion passed.  

 
11.  New Business 

 
11.1 Emergency Reading, Ordinance 20-634, Emergency Ordinance Extension 

 
Councilmember Bradford made a motion to approve emergency reading of 
Ordinance 20-634 which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion 
passed with unanimous approval.  
 

11.2 First Reading, Ordinance 20-635, Conditionally Allow Guest Houses in R15  
District 

 
Councilmember Ramsey made a motion to approve first reading of Ordinance 



City Council Meeting September 2020 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

20-635 which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion passed 
with unanimous approval.  
 

11.3 First Reading, Ordinance 20-636, Annexation/PUD Rezoning (Fergus  
Crossroads)  

 
Councilmember Ramsey made a motion to table first reading of Ordinance 20-
636 until the workshop meeting which was seconded by Councilmember Lowry. 
The motion passed with unanimous approval.  

 
11.4 Approvals for Bids and Awards 

 
• Concrete Slab at Recreation Complex to Ken L. Spears, General Contractor 

for $2,498 
 
Councilmember Ramsey made a motion to award the bid to Ken L. Spears, 
General Contractor which was seconded by Councilmember Bradford. The 
motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 

• Remove, Repave, & Stripe the Rec. Center Parking Lot to Rock Hill 
Industrial Piping & Fabrication for $51,535 

 
Councilmember Bradford made a motion to award the bid to Rock Hill 
Industrial Piping & Fabrication which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Brown. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 

• Repair & Replace the Public Works Storage Building Roof to Ken L. Spears, 
General Contractor for $7,884 

 
Councilmember Bradford made a motion to award the bid to Ken L. Spears, 
General Contractor which was seconded by Councilmember Jarrett. The 
motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 

• Remove and Install Chain Link Fence at Public Works Facility to A-1 Fence 
for $8,177 

 
Councilmember Lowry made a motion to award the bid to A-1 Fence which 
was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion passed with 
unanimous approval. 
 

• Fire Hydrant Flow Testing & Services to Holliday Utility Services for $38.50 
Per Fire Hydrant 

 
Councilmember Jarrett made a motion to award the bid to Holliday Utility 
Services which was seconded by Councilmember Ramsey. The motion 
passed with unanimous approval. 



City Council Meeting September 2020 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
• Replace Fire Dept. HVAC Unit to Harper Company of the Carolinas for 

$5,136.00 
 

Councilmember Ramsey made a motion to award the bid to Harper 
Company of the Carolinas which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. 
The motion passed with unanimous approval. 

 
11.5 Professional Services 

 
• CodeRED Notification System 

 
Councilmember Jarrett made a motion to approve signing the contract with 
CodeRED Notification system which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Brown. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 

 
• Legislative Consulting Services 

 
Councilmember Bradford made a motion to approve signing the contract for 
legislative consulting services which was seconded by Councilmember 
Ramsey. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 

11.6 Special Event Applications 
 

• Veteran’s Day Parade  
 

Councilmember Love made a motion to approve the Veteran’s Day 
Parade event application which was seconded by Councilmember Jarrett. 
The motion passed with unanimous approval. 

 
11.7  Discussion of Sale of Fire Engine  
 

Councilmember Bradford made a motion to have Brindlee Mountain Fire 
Apparatus sell the spare fire engine which was seconded by Councilmember 
Ramsey. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 

 
11.8        Approval of H-Tax Events Program 

 
Councilmember Jarrett made a motion to approve the H-Tax Events program 
which was seconded by Councilmember Ramsey. The motion passed with 
unanimous approval.  
 
 
 



City Council Meeting September 2020 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

12.  Mayor’s Report 
 

Mayor Fuesser reported that since attending the 100th birthday celebration for Pearline 
McKinney Thomasson a few weeks ago, that she passed away on August 24th. 

 
13. Executive Session: To Discuss Personnel Matters Related to the City Manager’s 

Performance Review 
 

Councilmember Bradford made a motion to enter into executive session which was 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 

14. Upon Returning to Open Session, Council May Take Action on Matters Discussed in 
Executive Session 

 
Councilmember Bradford made a motion to return to open session which was 
seconded by Councilmember Love. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 
Mayor Fuesser stated that no action was taken in executive session and that a letter 
will be placed in the city’s manager file regarding his job performance. 
 

15. Adjourn 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Brown made a motion to adjourn the meeting which was seconded by 
Councilmember Love. The motion passed with unanimous approval. The meeting was 
adjourned at 8:40 pm. 
 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Cynthia J. Wyatt 
Municipal Clerk 





















City Council Special Called Meeting & Work Session September 2020 

1 | P a g e  
 

Date and time: Monday, September 14, 2020 06:00 PM 
 

Members Present :      
Mayor Mike Fuesser    Councilmember Steve Love 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Brown    Councilmember Denise Lowry 
 Councilmember Jim Bradford   Councilmember Marion Ramsey  
 Councilmember Stephanie Jarrett    
   
      
Participants: 
City Manager Seth Duncan   Matthew Hickey     
Finance Director Barbara Denny   Terri Good 
Planning Director David Breakfield  Gary Good 
Richard Dover     Dale Baker 
Elizabeth Dover     Charles Brewer 
JJ Mattingly      Ernest Partlow  
Harold Ramsey  
         

 
     City Council Special Called Meeting 
 

1. Welcome and Call To Order                                                         Mayor Mike Fuesser 
 

2. Prayer                Mayor Pro Tem Ed Brown 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance                       Mayor Mike Fuesser 
 

4. Executive Session: To Discuss Receipt of Legal Advice Pertaining To Matters Covered 
By Attorney-Client Privilege 

 
Councilmember Love made a motion to proceed into executive session to receive legal 
advice which was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion passed with 
unanimous approval. 

 
5. Upon Returning to Open Session, Council May Take Action on Matters Discussed in 

Executive Session 
 
Councilmember Bradford made a motion to return to open session which was seconded 
by Councilmember Love. The motion passed with unanimous approval. 
 
There was no action taken. 

 
6. Adjourn 

 
Councilmember Bradford made a motion to adjourn the special called meeting and to 
begin the work session which as seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Brown. The motion 
passed with unanimous approval. 



City Council Special Called Meeting & Work Session September 2020 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
City Council Work Session 

 
1. Welcome and Call To Order                                                         Mayor Mike Fuesser 

 
2. Discussions              City Manager Seth Duncan 

 
2.1 Council Work Session 

 
The city manager discussed the previous committee structure and the current 
work session model. City Council discussed the benefits of both the committee 
structure and the work session model. City Council was to write down some 
ideas for the committee and work session structures. 

 
2.2 COLA Adjustment 
 

City Manager Duncan discussed an idea on the application of the COLA 
adjustment for employees that have exceeded their maximum salary per the 
pay scales. The idea is to give the COLA as a bonus to the 12 or so 
employees that have exceeded their pay scale, in lieu of increasing their base 
salary. It was the consensus of council to go ahead and apply the COLA’s to 
all employees’ salaries and to re-evaluate this idea after the compensation 
study is complete. 
 

3. Adjourn 
 

Councilmember Bradford made a motion to adjourn the meeting which was seconded by 
Councilmember Jarrett. The meeting was adjourned at 7:32 pm. 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Cynthia J. Wyatt 
Municipal Clerk 













 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 

   David Breakfield, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Ord. 20-636, Annexation/PUD Rezoning on Alexander Love Hwy 

DATE:  August 25, 2020 

 
ISSUE 
Council is being asked to consider First Reading of Ordinance 20-636 to Annex/PUD Rezoning on 
Alexander Love Hwy for the future creation of Fergus Crossroads.  
 
DISCUSSION 
We have received an Annexation/PUD Rezoning application and conceptual site plan submittal for the 
Fergus Crossroads PUD project to be located on Alexander Love Hwy near Cooperative Way. The project 
would include single family dwellings and townhomes as well as commercial outparcels along Alexander 
Love Hwy per the submitted site plan.  
 
The City’s zoning standards require that City staff provide a report regarding compliance with the 2019 
Comprehensive Plan and other pertinent issues. To summarize the staff report, the proposed project seems 
to comply with numerous major objectives of the Comprehensive Plan including:  

a) The City should aggressively seek annexation of developing residential areas on the periphery of 
the City. 

b) Encourage harmonious site design and provide variety in building types, facades, open spaces, 
etc. 

c) Encourage a wide range of quality housing options should be available to all income levels that 
increase home ownership rate and housing values. 

d) High quality multifamily residential development should be encouraged where appropriate public 
infrastructure is available. 

e) Encourage innovative land use practices to preserve open space and cluster housing units. 
f) Encourage provision of interconnected greenways and corridors to help maintain small town 

character. Such interconnectivity should include hiking and biking trail systems. 
g) Encourage mixed commercial /residential areas per future land use map. 
h) Encourage quality development in the gateway areas of the City. 

After reviewing the project, City staff finds that the submitted application complies with the noted major 
objectives in the following ways: 

• The City recently approved three (3) single family dwelling (houses only) developments with 
housing densities ranging from 3.2 to 3.8 residential units per acre. The overall housing density 



including townhome units is 3.19 residential units per acre; therefore, the proposed density is very 
comparable (and somewhat less) to that of previously-approved projects. 

• The City has tried to encourage diverse, high-quality exterior architectural styles and housing 
materials; to that end, the City has approved recent projects that include criteria requiring greater 
diversity of exterior materials and colors as well as standards to prevent façade repetition. This 
project incorporates such standards. 

• Quality multifamily residential projects are strongly needed in the City and the subject location 
would be ideal for townhomes due to its proximity to nearby infrastructure. 

• The subject area has been identified as an ideal location for new development due to its proximity 
to a major collector street and highways, the availability of important infrastructure, etc. 

• Per the City’s future land use map, the subject area is ideal for a quality mixed-use development. 
• The City requires that a minimum of 25% of the overall property be reserved as open space. The 

applicant has provided 46%.  
• The vast majority of the lots have direct connection to large open space areas.  
• The applicant has proposed several amenity areas for the project. 
• The applicant has proposed an interconnected trail system throughout the project and the 

sidewalk system shall be connected to any existing nearby sidewalk. 

As with any such request, the Planning Commission must review the application and the report from City 
staff and then make a recommendation regarding the matter to York City Council. At its August 24th 
meeting the Planning Commission conducted its review and made a 5 to 1 recommendation in support of 
the project. City Council is now to review the application and make a final decision on the issue.  

Please be aware that we have received concerns from the adjacent Pebble Creek Subdivision regarding 
the proposed project including potential cut-through traffic. The developer has attempted to lessen 
potential impact on adjacent existing neighborhoods by providing a 200’ bufferyard and a traffic-limiting 
device that limits the traffic flow to emergency vehicles only between adjacent neighborhoods.  
 
Also, it is important to note that the International Fire Code requires at least two (2) remote entrance/exit 
points from the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission and Staff recommend that Council approve First Reading of Ordinance 
20-636 to Annex/PUD Rezoning on Alexander Love Hwy for the future creation of Fergus Crossroads 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 

   David Breakfield, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Ord. 20-636, Annexation/PUD Rezoning on Alexander Love Hwy 

DATE:  September 29, 2020 

 
ISSUE 
Council is being asked to consider picking up from the Table, First Reading of Ordinance 20-636 to 
Annex and Rezone properties on Alexander Love Hwy for the future creation of Fergus Crossroads.  
 
DISCUSSION 
On September 1st, Council Tabled First Reading of Ordinance 20-636 which would annex 115.8 acres of 
property connecting to Alexander Love Highway for the future creation of Fergus Crossroads. The 
petitioners are also asking that Council approve the annexation with the zoning designation of Planned 
Unit Development (PUD). The project would include single family dwellings and townhomes as well as 
commercial outparcels along Alexander Love Hwy per the submitted site plan.  
 
The process of annexation is relatively straight forward. According to MASC’s Annexation Handbook, 
“annexation of any area or property which is contiguous to a municipality may be initiated by filing with 
the municipal governing body a petition signed by all persons owning real estate in the area requesting 
annexation.” The City has been presented with the following signed petitions for annexation: 
Owner(s) Tax Map #’s 

Richard & Dianna Walliser Revocable Trust 348-00-00-015, 348-00-00-019, 348-00-00-020 

SRAM1, LLC 348-00-00-006, 348-00-00-007, 348-00-00-008 
348-00-00-009, 348-00-00-010, 348-00-00-016 

Gordon L. Sinyard Etal. 395-00-00-005 

The City’s Zoning Ordinance states that, “where property has not been specifically included within a 
district, or where territory has become a part of the city by annexation, such areas shall automatically be 
classed as being in the R-15 residential district, except that at the time of application for annexation is 
filed, the applicant(s) may request an alternative zoning classification.” It goes on to state, “such a request 
must be submitted to the planning commission for study and recommendation to city council in 
accordance with the procedural requirements for amendments generally.”  

The applicants in this instance are requesting a zoning classification of PUD. As required, staff provided a 
report regarding compliance with the 2019 Comprehensive Plan and other pertinent issues to the Planning 
Commission. At its August 24th meeting, the Planning Commission conducted its review and made a 5 to 



1 recommendation in support of the project and rezoning. The staff report was also provided to City 
Council for review. 

Neither the annexation laws of South Carolina, nor ordinances of the City require a public hearing for 
owner petitions for annexation. However, a public hearing is required for zoning changes. Therefore, 
should Council wish to proceed with the petitioners request for annexation and approve First Reading, a 
public hearing will be scheduled at Second Reading.  

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission and Staff recommend that Council approve First Reading of Ordinance 
20-636 to Annex/PUD Rezoning on Alexander Love Hwy for the future creation of Fergus Crossroads.  

















































































STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA      ) 
 )                           CITY OF YORK 
COUNTY OF YORK ) 
      ) 
      ) 

ORDINANCE  20-636  
 
AMENDING APPENDIX A, ZONING ORDINANCE, OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP BY ANNEXING AND REZONING PROPERTIES REFERENCED 
BY YORK COUNTY TAX MAP #’s 3480000006, -007, -008, -009, -010, 
-016, 3480000015, -019, -020, and 3950000005. 

 
WHEREAS,  York City Council and Planning Commission find that the 

Comprehensive Plan recommends that the City should aggressively 
annex residential areas on the periphery of the City;  

 
WHEREAS,  York City Council and Planning Commission find that PUD zoning is 

designed to allow flexibility in form and higher housing densities; 
 
WHEREAS,  York City Council and Planning Commission find that the 

Comprehensive Plan encourages high quality, diverse, mixed-use 
developments in the gateway areas of the City;  and                 

 
WHEREAS,  York City Council and Planning Commission find that such annexations 

should include zoning classifications that are in keeping with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.   

     
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of York, South Carolina 
that the Appendix A, Zoning Ordinance, Official Zoning Map be amended by 
annexing +/- 115.8 acres of property identified by York County tax map #’s 
3480000006, -007, -008, -009, -010, -016, 3480000015, -019, -020, and 3950000005 
and owned by SRAM1 LLC, Richard William Walliser, and Sinyard Gordon L ETAL 
with a PUD – Planned Unit Development zoning district classification per the 
approved conceptual site plan and the attached petition for annexation (Exhibit A). 
 
DONE IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED on the dates hereafter set forth. 
 
      
   Michael D. Fuesser, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:     
   Municipal Clerk 
 
First Reading: _________________________ 
 
Public Hearing: _________________________ 
 
Second Reading: _________________________ 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 

   Barbara Denny, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: MASC Debt Setoff 2020 

DATE:  September 29, 2020 

 
ISSUE 
Council is being asked to consider Ordinance 20-637 adopting updated language provided by the 
Municipal Association of South Carolina to continue participating in the debt setoff program.  
 
DISCUSSION 
MASC is asking the City to adopt updated language to continue participating in the Debt Setoff Program. 
Undenounced to the City, the Association recently updated the model ordinance for the debt setoff 
program by making the following changes in red:  

1. The City of York may impose a collection cost of up to hereby imposes an administrative fee 
in the amount of $25.00 to defray its internal costs of collection for any delinquent debts that are 
sought to be collected pursuant to the provisions of the Setoff Debt Collection Act, S.C. Code Ann. 
§ 12-5610 et. seq. This cost This fee is hereby declared to be a collection cost that arises by 
operation of law and shall be added to the delinquent debt and recovered from the debtor. 

 
2. The City of York hereby declares that the administrative fee charged by the Municipal 
Association of South Carolina the state is also a collection cost to the City, which shall also be 
added to the delinquent debt and recovered from the debtor. 
 

To continue participating in the program, the City must update the language adopted and must do so by 
October 28th. Should Council desire to move forward, Second Reading would be scheduled for a Special 
Call Meeting in mid-October.  

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council adopt Ordinance 20-637 to continue participating in the MASC Debt 
Setoff Program.   



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
 ) CITY OF YORK 
COUNTY OF YORK ) 

 
 

ORDINANCE 20-637 
 

RELATING TO THE RECOVERY OF COLLECTION COSTS AS A PART 
OF DELINQUENT DEBTS COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE SETOFF 
DEBT COLLECTION ACT AND FOR THE PURPOSE OF REPEALING 
AND REPLACING ANY INCONSISTENT STATEMENTS IN THE PRIOR 
VERSION ADOPTED IN SECTION 2-4, ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of York is a claimant agency as defined in the Setoff Debt Collection 
Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 12-56-10, et seq. (the Act) and is therefore entitled to utilize the 
procedures set out in the Act to collect delinquent debts owed to the City of York; 
 
AND WHEREAS, “delinquent debt” is defined in the Act to include “collection costs, court 
costs, fines, penalties, and interest which have accrued through contract, subrogation, 
tort, operation of law, or any other legal theory regardless of whether there is an 
outstanding judgment for that sum which is legally collectible and for which a collection 
effort has been or is being made;” 
 
AND WHEREAS, the City of York has contracted with the Municipal Association of South 
Carolina to submit claims on its behalf to the SC Department of Revenue pursuant to the 
Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the Municipal Association of South Carolina charges an administrative 
fee for the services it provides pursuant to the Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the administrative fee charged by the Municipal Association of South 
Carolina is a cost of collection incurred by the City of York that arises through contract, 
and is therefore properly considered as a part of the delinquent debt owed to the City of 
York as that term is defined in the Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the City of York also incurs internal costs in preparing and transmitting 
information to the Municipal Association, which costs are also collection costs that are a 
part of the delinquent debt owed to the City of York;  
 
AND WHEREAS, the City of York may desire to recover its internal costs of collection by 
adding such costs to the delinquent debt; 
 
 



NOW THEREFORE, be it enacted by the Mayor and Council of the City of York as follows: 
 
1. The City of York may impose a collection cost of up to $25.00 to defray its internal 
costs of collection for any delinquent debts that are sought to be collected pursuant to the 
provisions of the Setoff Debt Collection Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 12-5610 et. seq. This cost 
is hereby declared to be a collection cost that arises by operation of law and shall be 
added to the delinquent debt and recovered from the debtor. 

 
2. The City of York hereby declares that the administrative fee charged by the Municipal 
Association of South Carolina is also a collection cost to the City, which shall also be 
added to the delinquent debt and recovered from the debtor. 
 
3. All Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
4. This Ordinance shall be effective on the date of final reading, provided however, that 
this ordinance is declared to be consistent with prior law and practice and shall not be 
construed to mean that any fees previously charged to debtors as costs of collection 
under the Act were not properly authorized or properly charged to the debtor. 
 
 
 
               
       Michael D. Fuesser, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:         
   Municipal Clerk 
 
 
 
First Reading Approval:     
 
Final Reading Approval:      
 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
 ) CITY OF YORK 
COUNTY OF YORK ) 

 
ORDINANCE 20-638 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY REVISING CHAPTER 44, UTILITIES, ARTICLE II, 
RATES AND CHARGES, AS PERTAINS TO WATER AND SEWER RATES 

BE IT ORDAINED by the York City Council on the dates hereinafter set forth, that Chapter 44, Utilities, 
Article II, Rates and Charges, Sec. 44-41, Water rates, and Sec. 44-43, Sewer rates, be amended as 
follows: 
There shall be a base rate of twenty-six dollars and twenty-two cents ($26.22) per month for each dwelling 
or living unit, whether all of said units are located within one building or in separate buildings, and providing 
that the units are located within the corporate limits of the City of York. 

There shall be a base rate of twenty-six dollars and twenty-two cents ($26.22) per month for each dwelling 
or living unit, whether all of said units are located within one building or in separate buildings, and providing 
that the units are located outside the corporate limits of the City of York. 

 
Sec. 44-41.  Water rates. 
(a) Water rates shall be as follows: Inside City Limits Outside City Limits 
 1,000 gallons   4.74   9.48 

(b) No change.   

(c) For large-volume users on a single meter, a declining rate scale will be used, as follows: 
 Gallons/Month Water Sewer Water/Sewer Outside* 
 0-500,000 4.74/1000 4.74/1000 $                 9.48/1000 
 500,001 - 1,000,000 4.16/1000 4.16/1000 6.24/1000 
 1,000,001 - 2,000,000 3.97/1000 3.97/1000 5.97/1000 
 2,000,001 - 3.80/1000 3.80/1000 5.71/1000 

 
(d) Residential Base Rate 26.22   
(e) Non-Residential Base Charge    
 5/8 or 3/4 inch 36.00   
 1.0 inch 60.00   
 1.5 inch 120.00   
 2.0 inch 192.00   
 3.0 Inch 264.00   
 4.0 inch 324.00   
 6.0 inch 600.00   
 8.0 inch 960.00   
 10.0 inch 1500.00   

 
Sec. 44-43.  Sewer rates. 
(a) Sewer rates shall be as follows: Inside City Limits Outside City Limits 
 1,000 gallons   4.74   9.48 

(b) No change.   

(c) For large-volume users on a single meter, a declining rate scale will be used, as follows: 
 Gallons/Month Water Sewer Water/Sewer Outside* 
 0-500,000 4.74/1000 4.74/1000 $                 9.48/1000 
 500,001 - 1,000,000 4.16/1000 4.16/1000 6.24/1000 
 1,000,001 - 2,000,000 3.97/1000 3.97/1000 5.97/1000 
 2,000,001 - 3.80/1000 3.80/1000 5.71/1000 

* Outside rates for large-volume users are calculated at 1.5x the inside rates. 
 
 



 
   

Michael D. Fuesser, Mayor 
 
 

 

ATTEST:     
   Municipal Clerk 
First Reading:    
Public Hearing:    
Second Reading:    



 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 

   David Breakfield, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Business License Refund Requests 

DATE:  October 6, 2020 

 
ISSUE 
The City has received two requests from businesses seeking refunds of penalties paid for business 
licenses taxes. Ambassador Packaging and First Industrial B&L have operated businesses at the same 
location (200 Ratchford Road) since 2017 without a business license. Both recently paid their taxes, and 
penalties, but believe the penalties to be excessive. Both are now requesting a refund by the City.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of York adopted MASC’s Model Business License Ordinance in August 2008, and updated it 
again this past June. The model ordinance requires that “every person engaged or intending to engage in 
any calling, business, occupation or profession, in whole or in part, within the limits of the City of York, 
is required to pay an annual license tax for the privilege of doing businesses and obtain a business license 
as herein provided.” It is incumbent upon the business owner, agent or legal representative to register with 
the City for the purposes of this ordinance.  
 
In addition, entities that fail to obtain a business license are subject to a late penalty prescribed by the 
ordinance. Sec. 10-42 states that “the license official shall levy and collected a late penalty of five percent 
of the unpaid tax for each month or portion thereof after the due date until paid.” And it goes on to state 
that “penalties shall not be waived.” Only Council has the authority to refund penalties, or portion thereof, 
at its discretion.  
 
REQUEST FOR REFUNDS  
First Industrial B&L, according to its statement, acquired and began leasing a warehouse at 200 Ratchford 
Road (Tax Map Parcel # 070-18-01-034) in 2018 to Ambassador Packaging. Neither First Industrial B&L 
nor Ambassador Packaging obtained a business license until 2020 – though both were required to.  
 
Both entities believe the penalties for failing to obtain a business license until 2020 to be excessive. The 
penalty breakdown is as follows:  
 

2017 200% of business license tax  (40 months)  
2018 140% of business license tax (28 months) 
2019 80% of business license tax (16 months) 
2020 20% of business license tax (4 months) 



 
The State Supreme Court has ruled that municipalities have the implied power to impose civil penalties 
by ordinance for late payment of business license taxes. In Municipal Association of SC v. AT&T, 361 
SC 576, 606 S.E. 2d 468 (2004), the court upheld a five percent per month penalty for late payment. 
 
Delinquent penalties are not limited by statute, and municipal ordinances vary widely in this regard. The 
Municipal Association’s model ordinance provides for a penalty of five percent of the unpaid tax for each 
month or portion thereof after the due date until paid. The civil penalties that accrue monthly on unpaid 
license taxes provide a strong incentive for prompt payment. 
 
Due to Sec. 10-48, Confidentiality, it is “unlawful for any official or employee to divulge or make known 
in any manner the amount of income or any particulars set forth or disclosed in any report.” Therefore we 
are unable to provide Council in an open session the amount of taxes paid and penalty paid other than the 
above.  
 
In addition, a Certificate of Occupancy has not been issued to Ambassador Packaging for their use of the 
warehouse due to ongoing and outstanding Fire Code violations. The Fire Marshall recently held a re-
inspection of the facility and found several items still out of compliance. A Municipal Summons was 
issued, and the Court gave Ambassador Packaging additional time to correct the violations. Staff believes 
that these remaining violations can be resolved by the end of October. It should be noted, it is has been 
the Fire Marshall’s past practice to issue fire code violations to the occupant of building rather than the 
owner. The rationale behind this decision is that the City does not have access to the lease agreement and 
therefore does not know who is responsible for what in terms of maintenance and repair. Thus, violations 
are issued to the occupant.  
 
DISCUSSION 
Though both entities have now paid for their 2020 business license as well as licenses for 2017, 2018, and 
2019 under protest, both are asking Council to refund the penalty amount. Council is under no 
requirement to issue a refund, but consideration should be provided under the following circumstances:  

• All fire code violations have been resolved 
• A Certificate of Occupancy is issued to Ambassador Packaging 

CONSIDERATION 
Staff is asking Council to strongly consider the refund of penalties if the above circumstances are met and 
because both entities have acted in good faith to obtain past and present business licenses.  



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor and Council 
 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 
Ben Wright, Utilities Director 
 

SUBJECT: Selection of Lowest Bidder to replace Roofing on the Fishing Creek WWTF 
Buildings located at 2498 Ecology Rd. 
 

DATE: September 25, 2020 
  

ISSUE 
City Council is being asked to approve an award for the lowest qualified bidder to make 
necessary repairs to roofs at the Fishing Creek WWTF. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Council allocated funds in the FY2020-2021 budget to make much needed repairs to the Blower 
Room, Influent Lift Station/ Electrical Room, Office/Lab, and the Chemical Storage buildings 
roof systems. The previous budget included $50,000 to making these repairs prior to the end of 
the fiscal year. Due to Covid and staff changes, the RFP was not released until after the 
onboarding of the new Utilities Director.  
 
An RFP was released in early September to identify a contractor capable of making repairs within 
a limited scope as advertised: As needed removal of existing roofing material to install one (1) 
new layer of 2’ ISO insulation mechanically over the existing built up roof to the existing 
concrete roof deck per manufacturer’s specifications. Install new .060 white TPO roof system 
over new insulation mechanically attached to the existing concrete roof deck per manufacturer’s 
specifications. Flashing of walls, roof curbs and pipe penetrations per manufacturer’s 
specifications Fabricate and install new coping caps. Clean up all associated debris and haul 
away. Provide manufacturer, labor, and material warranties. 

Bids were accepted and opened September 24, 2020 at City Hall. The results of the RFP is as 
follows: 

ATD Restoration               $23,350 
LCM Builders                   $160,000 
DACH Enterprises            $32,000 
CSS Enterprises                $44,664 
The Phoenix Group           $124,845 
Summit BST Roofing       $49,750 
Rock Hill Industrial          $47,256 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that City Council approve ATD Restoration in the amount of $23,350 to make 
the repairs to the roofs at the Fishing Creek WWTF as the lowest qualified bidder. 



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Seth Duncan, City Manager 

   Karen Fritz, Events Coordinator/PIO 

SUBJECT: Special Events  

DATE: September 30, 2020 

 
Movie Under the Stars – Friday, October 9th 
City Sponsored Event: A family friendly FREE movie night will take place at the York 
Recreation Complex on baseball field #1 with a limit of 250 attendees. The date is confirmed for 
Friday, October 9, 2020. Gates at 7:30pm, Movie at 8:45pm – 10:15pm. The movie featured is 
“Trolls World Tour”. This event will include adherence to the mask ordinance and social 
distancing. Separating each family on the field. Reservations will be required and may be made 
through Eventbrite, City Facebook, Website or by calling the Recreation Center. Alcohol is not 
permitted. Face masks will also be distributed to each attendee upon entry.  
 
Halloween Discussion – Saturday, October 31st 
Halloween 2020 will take place on Saturday, October 31st. In addition to the ghost and ghouls, 
costumes and candy, families will also contend with the presence and threat of covid-19. Though 
staff have been actively planning a safe, family-friendly one-way drive-thru trunk or treat at the 
York Recreation Complex, Council is being asked to weigh in on the event and Halloween night, 
in general, within the context of CDC Guidelines.   
 
The City’s One-Way Drive-Thru Trunk or Treat on Halloween night at the York Recreation 
Complex, as proposed, would take place in the main parking lot from 5:00 p.m. – 6:30 p.m.  
Area churches and community organizations would give out candy from the back of their 
vehicles as cars circle the perimeter of the parking lot to trunk or treat.  All attendees would 
remain in their vehicles, and no pedestrian traffic would be allowed. In addition, all participants 
and partners distributing candy would be required to wear masks and gloves throughout the 
duration of the event.   
 
Confirmed partners thus far include First Baptist Church, Trinity UMC, First Presbyterian 
Church, York YMCA, P.A.T.H., Tender Hearts, York Police Department, York Fire Department, 
and York Recreation Department.   
 



This event would take the place of the traditional trunk or treat that is normally held within 
walking distance of the Recreation Center.  Unfortunately, we will not have our pumpkin 
painting or pumpkin hunt due to COVID 19, the first time in over 25 years. 

Currently, the CDC is recommending the avoidance of higher risk activities including traditional 
door-to-door trick or treating and trunk or treating in favor of low risk, family-based activities. 
Staff is aware of some neighborhoods that have polled residents to determine what those 
residents were comfortable with (which was that they were in favor of traditional door-to-door 
activities and individual responsibility). We have also heard from the school district, who has 
asked that we encourage everyone to make smart, safe decisions by following recommend 
guidelines of federal, state, and local officials.  

Christmas Parade and Tree Lighting – Friday, December 4, 2020 at 6:30pm 
The City of York and the York Entertainment Society will be hosting the 81st Annual Christmas 
Parade and Tree Lighting Ceremony in downtown York on Friday, December 4th at 6:30pm. 
YES has submitted an application requesting closure of Congress from Liberty St. to Madison. 
Proceeds from this year’s parade and activities will benefit Tender Hearts Ministries. The event 
as planned is considerably scaled down from last year with organizers focusing on creating a 
Hometown Christmas event. The abbreviated holiday parade will consist of a handful of 
participants, consist of only local participation, and streamed online to avoid having a large 
crowd. Organizers are applying for a waiver, or if large group restriction end, they may increase 
the size of the parade, but remain focused on local participation. In the event the size of the 
parade does grow, they will seek additional approval of the City.  

WUCO – Saturday, May 15, 2021 
WUCO “We’re United Community Association” a non-profit organization. Point of contact is 
Jarrod McCoy. Requesting use of Jefferson Field for a community based event to include grill-
off and presentation of two (2) scholarships to local high school seniors based on essays 
submitted about what community means to them. Event time is 9am to 8pm. There will be live 
music, a couple of food trucks, but the main purpose is to have folks come together for a grill-off 
and in the name of community spirit. There may be a bouncy house and there will be children’s 
activities. They will provide hand-sanitizing stations. At this time they have not requested any 
city services, however, the city may need to consider a traffic control officer.  



Halloween 

Many traditional Halloween activities can be high-risk for spreading viruses. There 
are several safer, alternative ways to participate in Halloween. If you may have 
COVID-19 or you may have been exposed to someone with COVID-19, you 
should not participate in in-person Halloween festivities and should not give out 
candy to trick-or-treaters. 

Lower risk activities 
These lower risk activities can be safe alternatives: 

• Carving or decorating pumpkins with members of your household and 
displaying them 

• Carving or decorating pumpkins outside, at a safe distance, with neighbors 
or friends 

• Decorating your house, apartment, or living space 
• Doing a Halloween scavenger hunt where children are given lists of 

Halloween-themed things to look for while they walk outdoors from house 
to house admiring Halloween decorations at a distance 

• Having a virtual Halloween costume contest 
• Having a Halloween movie night with people you live with 
• Having a scavenger hunt-style trick-or-treat search with your household 

members in or around your home rather than going house to house 

Moderate risk activities 

• Participating in one-way trick-or-treating where individually wrapped 
goodie bags are lined up for families to grab and go while continuing to 
social distance (such as at the end of a driveway or at the edge of a yard) 

o If you are preparing goodie bags, wash your hands with soap and 
water for at least 20 second before and after preparing the bags. 

• Having a small group, outdoor, open-air costume parade where people are 
distanced more than 6 feet apart 

• Attending a costume party held outdoors where protective masks are used 
and people can remain more than 6 feet apart 

o A costume mask (such as for Halloween) is not a substitute for a 
cloth mask. A costume mask should not be used unless it is made of 

https://www.cdc.gov/handwashing/when-how-handwashing.html


two or more layers of breathable fabric that covers the mouth and 
nose and doesn’t leave gaps around the face. 

o Do not wear a costume mask over a protective cloth mask because it 
can be dangerous if the costume mask makes it hard to breathe. 
Instead, consider using a Halloween-themed cloth mask. 

• Going to an open-air, one-way, walk-through haunted forest where 
appropriate mask use is enforced, and people can remain more than 6 feet 
apart 

o If screaming will likely occur, greater distancing is advised. The 
greater the distance, the lower the risk of spreading a respiratory 
virus. 

• Visiting pumpkin patches or orchards where people use hand sanitizer 
before touching pumpkins or picking apples, wearing masks is encouraged 
or enforced, and people are able to maintain social distancing 

• Having an outdoor Halloween movie night with local family friends with 
people spaced at least 6 feet apart 

o If screaming will likely occur, greater distancing is advised. The 
greater the distance, the lower the risk of spreading a respiratory 
virus. 

o Lower your risk by following CDC’s recommendations on hosting 
gatherings or cook-outs. 

Higher risk activities 
Avoid these higher risk activities to help prevent the spread of the virus that 
causes COVID-19: 

• Participating in traditional trick-or-treating where treats are handed to 
children who go door to door 

• Having trunk-or-treat where treats are handed out from trunks of cars 
lined up in large parking lots 

• Attending crowded costume parties held indoors 
• Going to an indoor haunted house where people may be crowded 

together and screaming 
• Going on hayrides or tractor rides with people who are not in your 

household 
• Using alcohol or drugs, which can cloud judgement and increase risky 

behaviors 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/daily-life-coping/personal-social-activities.html#gatherings
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/daily-life-coping/personal-social-activities.html#gatherings
https://www.cdc.gov/alcohol/index.htm


• Traveling to a rural fall festival that is not in your community if you live in 
an area with community spread of COVID-19 

 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/other-at-risk-populations/rural-communities.html





























	October 2020 CC Agenda
	ACT Mission (1)
	ACT Goals and Objectives Data Review
	Resources List
	2020 YES Christmas Holiday Activities Overview - City Council Talking Points
	Memo - Guest House R15
	Definition of Guest House from City of York Zoning Ordinance
	R15 zoning amendment app 8-24-2020
	Ordinance 20-635 Cond allow guest houses in R15
	2020 - 10 October Report
	TO:
	Mayor and Council

	FROM:
	Seth Duncan, City Manager

	SUBJECT:
	Manager’s Report

	DATE:
	October 6, 2020


	September 2020 City Council Minutes
	Comments from SEptember 2020 CC Meeting
	September  2020 City Council Work Session Minutes
	October 2020 CC Packet - Finance Department Monthly Report
	Memo - Annex and PUD 9-1-2020
	Memo - Annex and PUD 9-29-2020
	Fergus Crossroads Petitions for Annex
	Ordinance 20-636 Annex-PUD Fergus Crossroads
	Memo - MASC Debt Setoff 2020
	Ordinance 20-637 - Debt Setoff Program
	Ordinance 20-638 2020 Utility Rates Ordinance NEW
	Memo - Business License Refunds
	Memo - Fishing Creek WWTF roofing bid
	TO:
	FROM:
	SUBJECT:
	DATE:

	Memo - Special Events
	Halloween CDC Guidelines
	Halloween

	5.15.2021 WUCO Cookoff - Jefferson Field
	2020 Special Event Form.Christmas Parade
	October 2020 Monthly Report Cover
	October 2020 CC Packet - Fire Department Monthly Report
	October 2020 CC Packet - Human Resources Report Card
	Snapshot of Human Resources

	October 2020 CC Packet - Parks & Recreation Monthly Report
	October 2020 CC Packet - Planning Department Monthly Report
	October 2020 CC Packet - Police Department Monthly Report
	October 2020 CC Packet - Public Works Monthly Report

	Button2: 


